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October 28, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a Sole Source contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC# 177575), Contoocook, NH. In the
amount of $2,000,000 to establish an eight (8) single-person bedroom community residence that
provides transitional housing to young adults, ages 18-26, who are experiencing mental illness
and/or co-occurring mental illness and substance use conditions, effective upon Governor and
Council approval through the Completion Date as specified In Exhibit A, Subsection 1.1, of the
attached agreement. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budget,, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-94-940010-2465 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUND

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
O0FRF6O2PH9551A $1,228,750

2026 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 00FRF602PH9551A $771,250

Total $2,000,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because it was not competitively bid. The Contractor is the
only identified provider able to stand up a community residence and provide the necessary
transitional housing services within the timeframes as required in the attached agreement. The
Contractor has demonstrated ability and experience with expeditiously standing up housing
options for individuals experiencing mental illness and/or co-occurring mental illness and
substance use conditions.



His Excettency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat>le Council
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The purpose of this request Is to support the purchase, renovation and furnishing of a
building that will allow for the creation of an eight (8) single-person bedroom community residence
program that will provide transitional housing, as well as to support the purchase of two (2)
vehicles for the provision of transportation services that foster access to the broader community.

Approximately eight (8) community residence single-person bedrooms will become
available by June 30, 2026.

The Contractor will purchase, renovate and furnish space to accommodate the eight (8)
single-person t)edroom community residence that will provide access to transitional housing and
treatment options for young adults. The space will feature clinical meeting space, a family meeting
room, a large dining room, and space large enough for group activities.

The contract will support Mission Zero, which aims to eliminate the challenge of people
waiting in emergency departments for an acute inpatient psychiatric bed at a Designated
Receiving Facility. The housing will allow people at New Hampshire Hospital to transition to the
community, freeing up beds for those in acute crisis.

The Department will monitor the project by reviewing the monthly progress reports,
conducting site visits, and reviewing the final report.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the State's ability to establish
long-term sustainable solutions to New Hampshire's behavioral health bed shortage and to
provide additional transitional housing and treatment options for young adults will be negatively
impacted.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #21.027, FAIN # SLFRP0145

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully su^itted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join eommunities and families
cn providing opportunities for cituena to achieve health and independence.



Docusign Envelope ID; 5C76C9B3^83O^9BD-A401-A67B553B306B FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)
Subject: Funds For Transitional Housing For Young Adults (SS-2025-DBH-30-FUNDS-01}

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

NFI North, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

40 Park Lane •

Contoocook, NH 03229

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 746-7550

1.6 Account Unit and Class

TBD

1 .7 Completion Date

See Exh.A,Section 1.1

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,000,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631.

1. 11 Contractor Signature
Sign«d by:

1  '^^^^0/23/2024
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Luke Reynard

1.1 ̂ ""^tafe^Agieti'cy Signature
DoeuSisned by:

1  ̂ ^^^^0/23/2024

1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

Katja S. Fox Director

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
DoeuSignbd by:

By: 0": 10/24/2024

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page I of 4
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Contractor Initials

Date 10/23/2024
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, Identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be perfomied at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in e.xcess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event, of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies

the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until.such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrarj', and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The

payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to. offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall compjy with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disabilit)', religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 4 (/
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice speclfy-ing the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to. the Contractor any damages the State sufTers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equit>', or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property pf the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independenfcontractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its olf!cers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to Us employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in '
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None ofthe Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which It
is not a part>'.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injuiy, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of4
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14. INSURANCE.

M.l The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and Issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The ceniflcate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with of exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("U^otkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Tlie
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 28 l-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in,a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only afler approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack Count>' Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form {as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provision's

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety ahd replacing it as follows:

3.3 The Contract Completion Date is ten (10) years from the date the real
property is first placed in service, defined as the day the first individual
takes up residence at the property.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

-Initial

SS-2025-DBH-30-FUNDS-01 A-1.2 Contractor Initials
10/23/2024

NFI North. Inc. Page 1 of 1 Date
7.14.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must purchase, renovate and furnish a residential property to
operate a community residence program that provides transitional housing for '
young adults, ages 18 to 26, who are experiencing mental illness and/or co-
occurring mental illness and substance use conditions in accordance with New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 1002, Certification Standards for
Behavioral Health Community Residences, and New Hampshire Administrative

Rule He-P 800, Residential Care and Health Facility Rules, Part 814,
Community Residences at the Residential Care and Supported Residential
Care Level, referenced as He-P 814; and ensure the residence accommodates:

1.1.1. A minimum of 8 single-person bedrooms;

1.1.2. Clinical meeting space;

1.1.3. A family meeting room;

1.1.4. A large dining room; and

1.1.5. Space large enough for group activities.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. The Contractor must provide a Work Plan, subject to approval by the
Department, within ten (10) business days of the Agreement Effective Date.
The Work Plan must include, but is not limited to:

1.3.1. A detailed plan for securing a community-based residential property
to be acquired and converted for the transitional housing services.

1.3.2. Identification and description of the tasks to be performed.

1.3.3. Projected start, completion, and opening dates.

1.3.4. Contingency planning as it relates to identified tasks.

1.4. Once the target property is identified, the Contractor must provide information
to the Department regarding the proposed property, including, but not limited
to location, size, proximity to community amenities, environmental fit for
proposed population, and description of planned renovations. The property
must be approved by the Department prior to purchase.

1.5. The Contractor must submit a Project Plan for renovation of the target property .
no later than ten (10) business days after acquisition of the property. The
Project Plan must include a detailed description of the Contractor's plan to
renovate the target property, including, but not limited to:.

1.5.1. A copy of the deed to the property.

1.5.2. A narrative physical description of the property..

,  (/
SS-2025.D8H-30-FUNDS-01 B-2.1 Contraclor Initials^

10/23/2024
NFI North, Inc. Page 1 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT B

1.5.3. Photographs of the property.

1.5.4. A description of any planned modifications or renovations and bid
documentation. .

1.5.5. A detailed timeline for the project, starting with the date of acquisition
of the property, and ending with completion of the renovation. The
project plan must include a description of necessary repairs, and a
timeline for the necessary repairs.

1.6. The Contractor must purchase and install sufficient furniture, fixtures, and
equipment at the property to support the community residence as described in
Section 1.1.

1.7. The Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for any costs associated with
the provision of services to the individuals residing at the target property.

1.8. The Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for any costs associated with
ongoing property maintenance and operations.

1.9. The Contractor must facilitate on-site visits to demonstrate progress of
renovations, and a tour of the final furnished space ̂Dhor to occupancy by
participants as requested by the Department.

1.10. The Contractor must operate as a community residence program as described
in Section 1.1. and ensure it continues to be used for its original purpose for a
minimum of ten (10) years from the date the property is placed in service,
defined as the day the first individual takes up residence at the property^

1.11. The Contractor must purchase two (2) vehicles, subject to prior approval by the
Department, for the provision of transportation services for individuals who
reside at the property. The Contractor must ensure:

1.11.1. Transportation is available for individual's ability to access the
broader community: and

1.11.2. Transportation services are provided at no cost to individuals in need
of services.

1.12. The parties shall not exchange any confidential information regarding clients of
the community residence program through this Agreement, which is intended
to-fund the purchase, renovations and furnishing of the property, and purchase
of vehicles only.

1.13. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.14. Reporting

1.14.1. The Contractor must submit monthly progress reports by the 15*^ of
the following month to the Department which includes, buj_is not
limited to:

SS-2025-DBH-30-FUNDS-01 B-2.1 Contractor Initials
10/23/2024

NFI North, Inc. Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT B*

1.14.1.1. Project status - Including if the activities are on target,
ahead of schedule, or delayed; efforts In securing a real
estate property; and progress of renovations.

1.14.1.2. Status of permits and licensing, as applicable; and

1.14.1.3. Timeline for opening and admitting residents, including any
barriers or delays.

1.14.2. The Contractor must submit a final report within 30 days of completing
all contract activities, or the . contract's expiration, to ensure
compliance which includes, but is not limited to:

1.14.2.1. A detailed account of funding spent on approved uses
during the term of the Agreement.

1.14.3. The Contractor must submit annual attestation reports for ten (10)
years from the date the property is placed in service, defined as the
day the first individual takes up residence at the property to ensure
program compliance which includes, but is not limited to:

1.14.3.1. The property and all furnishings and equipment acquired
under this Agreement continue to be used for their original
purpose as described in the Scope of Work of this
Agreement.

1.14.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, which
are' attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Sen/ices
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieye
compliance therewith.

3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement,' "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Healt|j^nd
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the Statd^LNew
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT B

Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.2.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to reports,
protocols, guidelines, brochures, posters, and resource directories.

3.2.4. The Contractor must,not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.3. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.3.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such

. costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as.purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contdSL/flttVis,
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EXHIBIT B

labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services,, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon further review, the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by
the Contractor as costs hereunder. the Department retains the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

-Initial

1/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreenient Is funded under a grant to the State of New Hampshire
("State") and subsequently through the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief
and Recovery ("GOFERR") and the Department as approved by the Governor
and Executive Council from the federal government through the Department of
Treasury ("Treasury") through the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
("ARPA"), with 100% of the source of funds being the State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds ("SLFRF") identified under the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance ("CFDA") number #21.027. The Federal Award Identification
Number ("FAIN") for this award is SLFRP0145. This grant award is a subaward
of SLFRF funds and any and all compliance requirements, as updated by
Treasury, for use of SLFRF funds are applicable to the Subreclpient, without
further notice. Treasury requirements are published and updated at
https://home.treasurv.aov/policv-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-

and-trlbal-aovernments/state-and-local-flscal-recoverv-funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has Identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subreclpient, based on criteria specified in 2 CFR
200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NGN-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The Indirect Cost Rate for this Agreement as 0%.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual allowable
expenditures incurred under this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line Items, as specified In Exhibit C-1, Budget.

3.1. Funds provided under this Agreement must be expended by June 30,
2026.

3.2. The Department shall not reimburse the Contractor for any costs not
allowable in accordance with federal requirements, or as othenwise not
allowable in accordance vyith Treasury requirements specified in above
Exhibit C, Section 1.

3.3. The Department may recoup payments made under this Agreement, in
whole or in part, in the event the Contractor fails to comply with the
provisions of this Agreement, in whole or in part, and does not remedy
any such failure to the'Department's satisfaction. This Section survives
termination and the Completion Date of this Agreement.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice to the Department no later than the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month In which the
services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number Issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services. (

(/
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EXHIBIT C

4.2. Is submitted in a format as provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment in accordance with Section 3 above..

4.4. Includes supporting documentation with each invoice, including, but not
limited to;

4.4.1. Receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as
applicable.

4.4.2. Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) for each vehicle;

4.4.3. Acquisition date and purchase price of each vehicle.

4.4.4. Copy of the Title for each vehicle.

4.4.5. Make and Model of each vehicle.

4.4.6. Location and condition of each vehicle.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature and is emailed to
dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.aov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30)
calendar days only upon receipt and approval of the submitted invoice and
required supporting documentation. The costs shall be incurred.or obligated
during the period of performance of the project, and shall be allowable,
meaning that the costs must conform to specific federal requirements detailed
in 2 CFR part 200 Subpart E.

6. The Contractor shall comply with the property management and procedures
detailed in 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart D.

7. The final invoice and any required supporting documentation shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) calendar days after the date listed in
Section 3.1. above.

8. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37,-changes
limited to adjusting direct and indirect cost amounts within the price limitation
between budget class lines; as well as adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, may be made by written agreement of
both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified. ,

^—Initial

(/
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8.1. The Contractor agrees to, as appropriate and to the extent consistent
with law (2 C.F.R. 200.322), to the greatest extent practicable, give
preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or
materials produced In the United States (including but not limited to iron,
aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The
requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including
all contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award.
For purposes of this section "produced In the United States" means,
for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from the
initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the
United States. "Manufactured products" means items and construction
materials composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as
aluminum: plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl
chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber;
and lumber.

9. The Contractor shall comply with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback Act (40 U.S.C.
3145).

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor is subject to a Single Audit
; pursuant to 2 CFR 200.501 Audit Requirements.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

10.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. -

1/
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10.4. The Contractor, regardless of the funding source and/or whether
Conditions A, B. or C exist, may be required to submit annual financial
audits performed by an independent CPA upon request by the
Department.

10.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been

disallowed because of such an exception, within sixty (60) days. .

11. The Conractor must ensure that any procurement using SLFRF funds, or
payments under procurement contracts using such funds are consistent with
the procurement standards set forth in the Uniform Guidance at 2 CFR 200.317
through 2 CFR 200.327, as applicable. The Uniform Guidance establishes in 2
CFR 200.319 that all jarocurement transactions for property or services must
be conducted In a manner providing full and open competition, consistent with
standards outlined in 2 CFR 200.320, which allows for non-competitive
procurements only in circumstances where at least one of the conditions below
is true: the item is below the micro-purchase threshold; the item is only
available from a single source; the public exigency or emergency will not permit
a delay from publicizing a competitive solicitation; or after solicitation of a
number of sources, competition is determined Inadequate. Subreclpients must
have and use documented procurement procedures that are consistent with
the standards outlined in 2 CFR 200.317 through 2 CFR 200.320.

12. The Contractor shall comply with 2 CFR part 200 Subpart D and the specific
standards regarding financial reporting, accounting records, internal control,
budget control, allowable cost, source documentation, and cash management
outlined therein.

13. Property Standards

13.1. Insurance coverage.

13.1.1. The Contractor must, at a minimum, provide the equivalent
insurance coverage for real property and equipment acquired
or improved in whole or in part with State funds under this
Agreement as the Contractor provides to real property and
equipment the. Contractor owns outside of this Agreement.

13.2. Real property.

13.2.1. Subject to the. obligations and conditions set forth in this
section, title to real property acquired or improved in whole
or in part with State funds under this Agreement (herein "real
property") will vest upon acquisition with the Contractor.

, ̂
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13.2.2. Except as otherwise provided by State statutes or by the
Department, the Contractor must use the real property for the
purpose originally authorized by the State as long as needed
for that purpose, during which time the Contractor must:

13.2.2.1. Not dispose of or encumber its title or other
interests without prior State approval.

13.2.2.2. Submit annual reports to the State as required in
Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 1.14.
Reporting, to confirm the real property continues
to be used for the originally authorized purpose.
When real property is no longer needed for the
originally authorized purpose, the Contractor
must obtain disposition Instructions from the
State. The instructions must provide for one of the
following alternatives:

13.2.2.2.1. Retain title after compensating the
State. The amount paid to the State
will be computed by applying the
State's percentage of participation in
the cost of the original purchase (and
costs of any improvements) to the fair
market value of the property;
However, in those situations where the
Contractor is disposing of real property
acquired or improved with State funds
and acquiring replacement real
property prior to expiration of this
Agreement and any amendment
thereof, the net proceeds from the
disposition may be used as an offset
to the cost of the replacement
property;

13.2.2.2.2. Sell the property and compensate the
State. The arnount due to the State will

be calculated by applying the State's
percentage of participation in the cost
of the original purchase (and cost of
any improvements) to the proceeds of
the sale after deduction of any actual
and reasonable selling and fixing-up
expenses. If the State appropriation
funding this Agreement or ,„^ny
amendment thereof has notTjbeen

>  intu

SS-2025-DBH-30-FUNDS-01 C-2..1 Contractor IniUals

10/23/2024
NFI North, Inc. Page 5 of 9 Date



Docusign Envelope ID; 5C76C983-C83O-49BD-A401-A678553B306B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Funds for Transitional Housing for Young Adults

EXHIBIT C

closed out, the net proceeds from sale
may be offset against the original cost
of the property. When the Contractor is
directed to sell property, sales
procedures must be followed that
provide for competition to the extent

.  practicable and result in the highest
possible return; or

13.2.2.2.3. Transfer title to a third party
designated/approved by the State.
The Contractor is entitled to be paid an
amount calculated by applying the
State's percentage of participation in
the purchase of the real property (and
cost of any improvements) to the
current fair market value of the

property.

13.3. Equipment.

13.3.1. Equipment means tangible personal property (including
information technology systems) purchased in whole or in
part with State funds and that has a useful life of more than
one (1) year and a per-unit acquisition cost which, equals or
exceeds $5,000.

13.3.2. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this
section, title to equipment acquired with State funds will vest
upon acquisition in the Contractor subject to the following
conditions. The Contractor must:

13.3.2.1. Use the equipment for the authorized purposes of ,
the project during the period of performance, or
until the property is no longer needed for the
purposes of the project.

13.3.2.2. Not encumber the property without approval of the
State.

13.3.2.3. Use and dispose of the property in accordance
with Section 13.3.3. and Section 13.3.4.

13.3.3. Use.

13.3.3.1. Equipment must be used by the Contractor in the
program or project for which it was acquired as
long as needed, whether or not the project or
program continues to be supported b^Siate
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funds, and the Contractor must not encumber the

property without prior approval of the State. When
no longer needed for the original program or
project, the equipment may be used In other
activities funded by the State.

13.3.3.2. During the time that equipment is used on the
project or program for which it was acquired, the
Contractor must also make equipment available
for use on other projects or programs currently or
previously supported by the State, provided that
such use will not interfere with the work on the

projects or program for which it was originally
acquired. First preference for other use must be
given to other programs or projects supported by
the State that financed the equipment. Use for
non-State-funded programs or projects is also
permissible with approval from the State.

13.3.3.3. When acquiring replacement equipment, the
Contractor may use the equipment to be replaced
as a trade-in or sell the property and use the
proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement
property.

13.3.3.4. Management requirements. Procedures for
managing equipment (including replacement
equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part
with State funding, until disposition takes place
will, as a minimum, meet the following
requirements:

13.3.3.4.1. Property records must be maintained
that include a description of the
property, a serial number or 'other
identification number, the source of

funding for the property, who holds
title, the acquisition date, and cost of
the property, percentage of State
participation in the project costs for the
Agreement under which the property
was acquired, the location, use and
condition of the property, and any
ultimate disposition data including the
date of disposal and sale price of the
property.

1/
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13.3.3.4.2. A physical inventory of the property
must be taken and the results

reconciled with the property records at
least once every two (2) years.

13.3.3.4.3. A control system must be developed to
ensure adequate safeguards to
prevent loss, damage, or theft of the
property. Any loss, damage, or theft
must be investigated.

13.3.3.4.4. Adequate maintenance procedures
must be developed to keep the
property in good condition.

13.3.3.4.5. If the Contractor is authorized or

required to sell the property, proper
sales procedures must be established
to ensure the highest possible return.

13.3.4. Disposition. When original or replacement equipment
acquired with State funds is no longer needed for the original
project or program or for other activities currently or
previously supported by the State, except as othenwise
provided by State statutes or in this Agreenient, the
Contractor must request disposition instructions from the

,  State. Disposition of the equipment will be made as follows:

13.3.4.1. Items of equipment with a current per unit fair,
market value of $5,000 or less may be retained,
sold or othenwise disposed of with no further
obligation to the State.

13.3.4.2. Items of equipment with a current per-unit fair-
market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained
by the Contractor or sold. The Stale is entitled to
an amount calculated by multiplying the current
market value or proceeds from sale by the State's
percentage of participation in the cost of the
original purchase. If the equipment is sold, the
State may permit'the Contractor to deduct and
retain from the State's share $500 or ten (10)
percent of the proceeds, whichever is less, for its
selling and handling expenses.

1,3.3.4.3. The Contractor may transfer title to the property
to an eligible third party provided that, in such
cases, the Contractor must be enbtledu.! to

:  ' (jj
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compensation for its attributable percentage of
the current fair market value of the property.

13.3.4.4. In cases where the Contractor fails to take

appropriate disposition actions, the State may
direct the Contractor to take disposition actions.

13.4. Property Relationship and Liens

13.4.1. Real property, equipment, and intangible property, that are
acquired or improved with State funds must be maintained
and preserved in good order by the Contractor for the
beneficiaries of the project or program under which the
property was acquired or improved. The Stale may require
the Contractor to record liens or other appropriate notices of
record to indicate that personal or real property has been
acquired or improved with State funds and that use and
disposition conditions apply to the property.

13.5. This Section 13. survives termination and the Completion Date of this
Agreement.

-Initial

1/
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Exhibit C-1. Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: NFI North, Inc.

Budget Request for: Funds For Transitional Housing For Young Adults
Budget Period; 0

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)'0.00%

Line Item

Program Cost -

Funded by.DHHS-SFY

25

Program Cost ♦ Funded
by DHHS • SFY 26

1. Salary SiWaqes SO SO

2. Frinqe Benefits $0 SO

3. Consultants $0 SO
4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2.
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$83,000 $15,000

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical so so
5.(e) Supplies • Office .so $0
6. Travel so $0
7. Software so $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0 $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $0 $0
8. (c) Other • Other (specify below) so so

8 Single-Person Bedroom Residential Building - $900,000 $100,000

Fees $15,000 $15,000
Renovations $153,250 $459,750

Vehicle #f $60,000 $0

Vehicle #2 SO $60,000
Furnishings $17,500 $121,500

Other (please specify) $0 $0
9. Subredoient Contracts SO $0

Total Direct Costs $1,228,750 $771,250

Total Indirect Costs SO $0

Subtotals SI.228.750 $771,250
TOTAL $2,000,000

SS-2025-DBH-30-FUNDS-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections

, 1.11 arid 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
'  in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal dm^
statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after suctYconwition;

^ ^ —v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials^;---—
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying.,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by

.  specific mention sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its instructions, see https://omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SIOjOOO and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

v1 6/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
' participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
•  covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion r
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
https://wy/w.ecfr.gov/current/title-22/chapter-V/part-513.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeht, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph
(l)(b) of this certification; and

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where-the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:
13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

v16/23 Exhibit D Contractor's Initials

iniu

Federal Requirements DateW23/20Z4

Page 5 of 10



Docusign Envelope ID: 5C76C9B3-C83D-49BD-A401-A67B553B306B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
■ Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification;

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
{2CFR200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The. Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, vvhich prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

■ 6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation:

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and, policy-making criteria'for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense .
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air. (
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12. The Clean Water Act {33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of pollutants Into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters.

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate.

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers rnust include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1.- By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

/«—Inittal
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure, to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the '
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994.
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5. Program source

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance

9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of.The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
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FORMA

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

ne8xhamhz6v8
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

10/23/2024

Date:

Contractor Name: nfi North

Signed by:

/

fid

Name: Luke Reynard
Title: ED
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify' that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992. 1 further certify' that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0005764736

%

■9

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Bruce Farenwald hereby certify that;
(Name.of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; canriot be contract signatory)

1. 1 arn a duly elected Glerk/SecretarV/Officer of NFI North. Inc.
{Corporatipn/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy pf a vote taken at a rheeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 24 2024, afwhich a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting,

(Date)

VOTED: Luke Reynard, Executive Director ; (may list more than pne'.person)
(Name arid Title ofContract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of _NFI North, Ihc. to enter into contracts or agreernents with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute, any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be^desirable oj^neceSSary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. r.hefeby certify that said vote has, not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the coritract/coritract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
day's prior'to arid remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, i further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Harripshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are ariy limits oh the authority of any listed individual to bind.the corporation'in contracts with,
•the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

rDa\e6y''-n.--t ̂
Signature bf Elected Officer
Name: Bruce Farenwald
Title: Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0AT6 (MM/DO/YYYY)

10/18/2024

THiS CERTlFiCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(8).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

N^MEf^^ Susan Kania
w/c.'No.Exn; 855 874-0123 no): 781-376-5035
ADDRESS: Susan.Kania@usi.eom

INSURER($) affording COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity insurance Co. 18058
INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B: North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C ;

INSURER 0:

INSURERE:

INSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

(NSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
INSR

SUBR
VWO POLICY NUMBER

POUCYEFF
(mm/oo/yyyy)

POLICY EXP
(mm/do/yyyy) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIM&.MADE OCCUR

PHPK2638417 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

MED EXP (Any one parson)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I JEirr I I LOC
GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

$1,000,000

$1.000.000

$5,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2638415 01/01/2024 01/01/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenO 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per.acddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecddenl)

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB894574 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $10.000.000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000
RETENTION si 0000

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? LN]

4067404992 07/01/2024 07/01/2025 V PER
A STATUTP

OTH

ER—

(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000
Professional

Abuse

PHPK2638417

PHPK2638417

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

1MIU3MIL

1MIU3MIL

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may l>e attached K more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept Health & Human Services;

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and empowering people to reach their full
potential so that they can live successfully within their

own home and community
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.
Contoocook, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion *

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NFI North, Inc. as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards ,applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of NFI North, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

CLA (CliPionlafsonAllen LLP) is an independent network membet of CLA Global. See CLAglobaLcom/disclaimgr.
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

/

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

(2)
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
30, 2024, on our consideration of NFI North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards in considering NFI
North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CiiftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 30, 2024

(3)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents •

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate (note 10)

Investments (note 4)
Total current assets

7,116,823

7,438,921

193,479

172,742

5,193,750

20,115,715

Property and equipment:

Land

Buildings and improvements
Equipment and furnishings

Vehicles

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Lease right-of-use assets

Other assets

Total assets

974,781

12,922,227

882,329

1,626,500

16,405,837

(7,743,454)

8,662,383

67,317

282,074

$ 29,127,489

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5)
Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6)
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

182,899

33,171

297,997

2,056,241

1,960,834

149,668

4,680,810

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5)

Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6)

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

2,352,754

33,245

2,385,999

7,066,809

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying Notes to Finandal Statements.

21,697,715

362,965

22,060,680

$ 29,127,489
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2024

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions:

Revenues and other support:
Contracts.net $ 45,318,236

Contributions:

Contributed nonfinancial assets 1,154,633

Other 74,746

Interest and dividends 502,708

Miscellaneous 444
47,050,767

Net assets released from restrictions 162,611
Total revenues and other support 47,213,378 .

Expenses:

Program services 40,245,200
Supporting services 4,487,311

Total expenses 44,732,511

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities 2,480,867

Nonoperating activities:

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 319,447
Gain on sale of property and equipment . 54,610

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 2,854,924

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:
Contributions and grants 162,921

Net assets released from restrictions (162,611)

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions ■" 310

Increase in net assets 2,855,234

Net assets at beginning of year 19,205,446

Net assets at end of year $ 22,060,680

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(5)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2024

Program Supporting
services services Total

Personnel expenses:

. Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits $ 28,621,372 $  2,116,686 $  30,738,058

Other expenses:

Contracted services 4,535,521 1,868,632 6,404,153

Other direct costs 1,879,820 268,483 2,148,303
Contributed nonfinancial assets 1,154,633 - 1,154,633

Consumables 1,049,959 - 1,049,959

Occupancy 953,240 49,614 1,003,054

Transportation 799,099 49,390 . 848,489

Equipment 246,607 . 51,431 298,038

Interest 87,516 10,745 98,261

10,706,395 2,298,495 13,004,890

Depreciation and amortization 917,433 72,130 989,563

Total expenses $ 40,245,200 $  .4,487,311 $ 44,732,511

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash"
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sale of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized gain on investment
Amortization of right-of-use asset
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Operating lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments of long-term debt
Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

$  2,855,234

989.563

(54,610)

(319,447)

60,832

(2,480,748)
(2,967)

(172,742)

(47,080)

(35,180)

345,231

830,530

(60,422)

134,736

(56,249)

1,986,681

(3,313,494)

(1,487,466)

55,500

1,351,024

(3,394,436)

(181.977)

(181,977)

(1,589,732)

8,706,555

$  7,116,823

Supplemental data;
Cash paid for interest 98,261

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a nonprofit organization whose purpose is to provide community-
based social services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North
American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of
directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are deriyed from services contracted with the
States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human Services, Children, Youth and

Families, Medicaid, Medicare, private pay, and local public school districts.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting, have been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and
transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows:

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met by actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of
the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses
are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on
investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or
law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions are reported as
reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations of restrictions with
donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been accomplished
and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed
restriction is fulfilled to, the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a
purpose that is directly attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In 2024, NFIN adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial instruments, as amended, which modifies
the measurement of expected credit losses. NFIN adopted this new guidance using the
modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did not have a
material impact on NFIN's financial statements but did change how the allowance for credit
losses is determined.

Cash and Eguivalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are
considered cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Cash and
equivalents within investment accounts are considered to be investments for purposes of
the statement of cash flows.

(8)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

NFIN carries its accounts receivable net of an allowance for credit losses. The allowance is

determined to present the net amount of accounts receivable expected to be collected. The
allowance represents the expected credit losses based on historical experience, current
economic conditions, and certain forward-looking information. The allowance is evaluated
on a periodic basis based on an assessment of outstanding balances for all accounts over

90 days past due. Those balances deemed by management to have potential collectability
issues, are charged to the allowance for credit losses accounts. As of June 30. 2024, the
allowance was $47,658.

Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken
no significant uncertain tax positions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

NFIN maintains cash balances at financial institutions, which at times may exceed federally
insured limits. NFIN has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not

exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually.
Legislative budgets could significantly Impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to
continue existing programs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair
value at the date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line-method over the
following estimated useful lives;

Buildings and Improvements 5-33.3 years
Equipment and Furnishings 2-10 years
Vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to NFIN's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of 1) the useful life of the
leasehold improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the
lease include the years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(9)



Oocusign Envelope ID; 5C76C9B3-C83D^9BD-A401-A67B553B3068 •

NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical health care costs. As of June 30, 2024, the
estimated liability for health care claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $172,584
included in accrued payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial
position.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. NFIN uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and

,  liabilities based on those valuation methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of
inputs is summarized in the three broad levels listed below.

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

Leve/3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in
determining the fair value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

Leases

NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NFIN has leases under which it
is obligated as a lessee. Operating leases as a lessee are included in right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's, right to use an underlying asset for the lease term.
Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at commencement date
based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term discounted using an
appropriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the
risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as
the incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at
commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an
option to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain
management will exercise that option.

(10)



Docusign Envelope ID: 5C76C9B:i-C83l>49BD-A401-A67B553B306B

NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

NFIN recognizes revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to which NFIN
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to its customers using
the following five-step process;

1. Identify the contract(s) with the customer

2. Identify the performance obligation(s) in the contract
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfies a performance obligation.

See note 7 for details on how the above five-step process is applied to NFIN's contracts with
customers.

Contributed Nonflnanclal Assets

NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facilities which are valued at the fair value of

similar properties available use in commercial markets. NFIN also receives contributed
goods which are value at estimated fair value. See note 8 for additional information on
contributed nonfinancial assets in 2024.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs incurred totaled $81,423
during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Subseauent Events

NFIN has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2024, the date which the
financial statements were available for issue, noting no events requiring adjustment to, or
disclosure in, the financial statements.

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2024, assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of-the statement of financial position date,
comprise the following:

Cash and equivalents . $ 7,116,823
Accounts receivable, net 7,438,921

Investments 5,193,750

Due from affiliate 172,742
Total financial assets 19,922.236

Less amounts designated for program purposes (362,965)
Total financial assets available for general expenditures $ 19,559,271
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABLE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As part of the NFlN's liquidity management, NFIN maintains working capital lines of credit,
which provides liquidity available to meet general expenditures as liabilities and other
obligation come due.

NOTE 3 LINE OF CREDIT

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut. Inc. (NAFICT),
NFI Vermont, Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts Inc. (NFI), a two-year term committed
facility $8,000,000 line of credit from TO Bank. The line of credit bears interest at a
fluctuating rate equal to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 1-Month Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR), plus 2.00% per annum, not to exceed 6.00%, (6.00% as of
June 30, 2024). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV,
NFI and NFIN and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit due and payable on May 31, 2026, without notice or
demand. As of June 30. 2024, there were no borrowings outstanding under this line of
credit.

•  In addition, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TD for a total amount of
$959,620. The Letter of Credit agreements can be utilized by all subsidiaries in the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit
agreements are a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments as of June 30, 2024 consisted of the
following:

Corporate bonds

Equities

Cash and equivalents

$. 2,629,975

2,440,923

122,852

$ 5,193,750

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy,
except corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair
value levels during the year.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 consisted of the following:

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate. 0.00%-8.00%

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

Fiscal

Year Due

2026-2041

Amount

$ 2,535.653

2,535,653

(182,899)

$ 2,352,754

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will
be forgiven at the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide
housing in accordance .with stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable
contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

Thereafter

$  182,899

617,920

325,160

462,633

101,573

845,468

$ 2,535,653

Interest expense was $98,261 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

NOTE 6 LEASES

NFIN is committed to annual payments under several long-term non-cancelable (except
under certain circumstances) operating leases for property and equipment through fiscal
year 2030.
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 6 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lease expense reported in occupancy, transportation, and equipment in the statement of
functional expenses amounted to $105,516 for the year ended June 30, 2024, the
components of which are as follows;

Lease cost:

Operating lease expense

Short-term lease expense

89,316

16,200

$  105,516

Operating right-of-use assets exchanged for lease liabilities during 2024 totaled $28,649.

Payments due include options to extend leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal
year 2030 and are summarized below: .

Year ended June 30:

2025 $  35,072

2026 11,489

2027 11,113

2028 6,333

2029 5,865

Thereafter 255

70,127

Less: amounts representing interest (3.711)

Operating lease liabilities $  66,416

The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 36 months. The
weighted-average discount rate for operating leases is 3.47%.

NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, (ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of the promised goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e.,
the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and
fee-for service contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being
reimbursed for services delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is
generally as expenses are incurred.

(14)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2024

NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Rate based contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services delivered
over the course of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source
which is generally when services are provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 23%
for cost reimbursement contracts and 77% for rate-based contracts for the year ended
June 30, 2024.

Balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenue related to contracts with customers

are summarized below:

Accounts

Receivable

Opening (July 1, 2023)

Closing (June 30, 2024)

Increase

Deferred

Revenue

$ 4,958.173- $ 14,932

7,438,921 149,668

$ 2,480,748 $ 134,736

NOTE 8 CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended June 30. 2024, contributions of nonfinancial assets recognized by NFIN
within the statement of activities included:

Rent

Consumables and supplies

$  1.092,565

62,068

$  1,154,633

NFIN recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue, including contributions of
rent, consumables and supplies. Contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-
imposed restrictions.

The contributed space is for programmatic activities. In valuing the contributed space, which
is located in Concord, New Hampshire, NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent
comparable rental prices in the area's real estate market.

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN
1

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which
annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected

to make a contribution of $420,346 for the year ended June 30, 2024. These expenses are
included in employee benefits expense within the accompanying statement of functional
expenses.

(15)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative
management fee for supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries..
These allocated costs amounted to $1,941,078 for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have
been included in supporting services expenses in the accompanying statements of activities
.and contracted services expenses within the statement of functional expenses.

In addition. NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI.
This charge was $20,502 for the yetar ended June 30, 2024, and has been included in the
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30,
2024 in the amount of $172,742. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the
accompanying statement of financial position and is expected to be paid in one year.

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, NFIN is subject to the laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. From time to time, NFIN may be notified of potential claims or
litigation. Management evaluates such claims if they arise. NFIN was notified that it was
riamed a party to an ongoing lawsuit. The outcome of the lawsuit is not yet finalized.

NFIN has established a reserve of $1,083,712 for management's estimation of probable
expenses related to ongoing litigation. Since information regarding the case continues to
evolve, management continues to evaluate and monitor any potential impact to the
organization.

(16)
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CiiftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.coni

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.
Contoocook, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North. Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30.
2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFI North, Inc.'s

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do-not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal cpntrol
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not , designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not Identified.

CLA (piflonLarsonAllen LLP) is an Indepcndfiiit net work rnembet of CLA Global. See CLABlobaLcom/disclaimer.

'  (17)
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFI North, Inc.'s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 30, 2024

(18)
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Investrnent advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen Wealth Advisors, LLC, an

INO£P£ND£MT

NETWORK MEHBEO
SEC-Fegistered investment advisor.



Docusign Envelope ID: 5C76C9B3-C63CM98D-A401-A67B553B306B

NFI NORTH, INC.

OFFICERS

Title Name
.

Address

President

Suanne Nader

Educator

Treasurer

Bruce Farenwald

Retired CFO
1

Clerk/Secretar>'
Dellie Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name
Occupation Address

Suanne Nader Educator

Dellie

Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

■

Bruce Farenwajd Retired CFO

Ashley
Wainwright Marketing Professional

Banking Industry'
Terry Lochhead

Retired Communications

Consultant

Patricia Fillib

Licensed Clinical Mental

Health Counselor

Don Nason

Attorney

Terms: Until successors are duly elected and qualified.
Directors As of: 1-22-24

^CTE: No compensation for Members or
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LUKE REYNARD

ABOUT ME Experienced nonprofit leader in behavioral health and disability service systems

and program operations. Currently serving as the Executive Director of NFI North

overseeing the administration of agency operations, programs, strategic planning,

and ensuring the organization adheres to the agency mission and vision while
meeting financial objectives. Adept at fostering relationships with key

stakeholders, including board members, state partners, team members, and

participants. Well-rounded professional with experience in both operational,

administrative and financial operations, and driven by a focus on mission and

values. An effective communicator with the ability to translate complex

organizational goals into actionable plans, I am proud to bring visionary

leadership, operational excellence, and strategic insights to the NFI North

Executive Director position.

SKILLS & • Leadership & Organizational Development
ABILITIES , Financial Acumen

I

•  Analytical Problem Solver

PROFESSIONAL NFI NORTH
EXPERIENCE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR January 1, 2024 - Present

Provide leadership and overall management for agency administration including
operations, finance, and strategic planning, working closely with the Board of

Directors. Responsible for ensuring the successful operation of agency programs
serving individuals through the life continuum. Collaborate with the Board of

Directors, agency management, business office operations, and key stakeholders
to achieve and maintain fiscal and programmatic excellence.

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER: April 2021 - December 2023

Oversee the program operations of Maine and New Hampshire services, as well as

IT and health record operations. Ensure agency compliance with Joint

Commission accreditation and standards, as well as state contractual

requirements. Support agency strategic plan goals and execution. Represent NFI

North with numerous stakeholders and state agencies, cultivating positive
relationships. Supervise program expansion and development opportunities.
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UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS, UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY, START PROGRAM

July 2019-April 2021

Provided operational and financial leadership for national START MH/IDD program
consultation, research, and program development.

MHMR TARRANT TX

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER, DISABILITY SERVICES

November 2005 - June 2019

Beginning as a case manager, progressively assumed leadership roles culminating

in a Chief Operations role for Disability Services for Texas' second-largest

community mental health center (CMHC), serving over 4000 people monthly in
residential and community-based programs.

EDUCATION ANDERSON UNIVERSITY - PH.D CANDIDATE IN LEADERSHIP AND

ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Doctoral student in the Center for Leadership and Organizations with research

interests in organizational commitment and antecedent factors, leadership

empathy, mindfulness, and emotional intelligence factors.

Expected graduation: May 2025

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM - MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Graduate business program with a focus on economics and analytics

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY - BACHELORS DEGREE IN PSYCHOLOGY

Major in psychology; minor in criminal justice

VOLUNTEER &

COMMUNITY

ACTIVITIES

TOWN OF HENNIKER,NH - BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Member of the Budget Advisory Committee reporting to the Board of

Selectpersons. The role includes financial analysis and recommendations to the.

Board regarding the annual,town budget prior to the town vote.

HENNIKER YOUTH ATHLETICS - COACH

Volunteer coach for youth baseball and basketball.

Page 2 Luke Reynard
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Jill Allen

Profile

Aproven leader in the field ofhuman services

for over 32 years; Well organized, smart, and

creative. Long term success woikingu'ith, and

across teams Ihrou^oiit the State oflvfeme

andNH Track record ofmentoring people to

maximize theirpotentialloogterm. Remains

cabu and positive in clialleu^gsituations.

loyal and dedicated.

CONTACT

BUILDING PERSONAL AND PROFESSIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

DEVELOPING STIRONG WORKPLACE CULTURE

ABI LITY TO SEE THE GLASS HALF FULL

CLINICALLY SOUND IN DIAGNOSIS AND TRAUMA

HIGHLY ORGANIZED - MULTITASKER

GRITTY AND COMPETITIVE

POUCYAND PROPSOAL WRITING

OPEN TO FEEDBACK AND GROWTH

FISCALLY SAVY

RESPONSIVE

OPERATING OFFICER

NFI NORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE

February 2024-Present

Provide oversi^t to all agency operations forNFINortli. ̂ ure the pvei-all
mission, vision, and policies ofth'e.agencyaie followed. Duties inchide'the
multhmlllion-doiiar, fiscal management of26 individual programs in twp
states, including mult^le residentiaL five schoob, and both child andaduh
communilyoutreach, FostcrCarc, Wraparound, and Case Management

services. Chairperson and &cilitator6fmohthlycliriicalmeetin^,ensuriDg
the fidebtyofthe nonuative approach and othercfinical modalities are
followed. Program development and strategic planuingas part ofthe
Administrative Team, and in conjimcture with Statewide Partneish^s.
T^hold ailhcensingregulations.and Joint Commission Standards mchidiog
DEBinitiatKes. Provide direct oversi^t to the Director ofHRand the HR
.departmerit including the hiring, onboarding, and trairiiDgbfstafif Provide
direct oversi^t to the DirectorcfDevelopment arid Kfarketiug^d the
recent rebranding initia the for the agency. Vfenjtpr leadershy team
ruembers, including Regnal Directors for each state ofME andNH,
providingsupervision, coaching and guidance as needed. Champion aD
program partk^ants, femilies, and connected team members fiir
•successful tmatment outcomes.

REGIONAL biRECTOR

NFI NORTH, BRIDGTON, MAINE

November 1996-2024

Provide oversight to all program operations in the State ofMaine. Ensure the
oveialltnission. vision, arid policies ofthe ageiicyaie followed. Duties
include the multi-Luillion-dollar, fiscalmanagement of 15 individual
programs, iuchidingresidential, four schoob, and both child and adult
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Values To live By;

Belonging

❖ Dedication

Empathy

❖ Resilience

❖ Tiust

community outreach. Cbaiiperson and&cilitatorofmonthlyclniical
development meeting, ensuringthe fidelityofthc nomiath^ approach and
other clinical modalities are followed. Program dewlopment and strategic
plamiiugas part ofthe ̂ miuistratho Team, and in conjuncture with
Statewide Partnersh^s. l^hold aUlkeusingregulatiDns and Joint
Commission Standards inchidingDEIBinitiatives. N^ntor leadersh^ team
members providing supervision, coaching, and guidance as needed.
Champion all program partic^auts, hiniilies, and cbdiiected team meihbeis

forsuccessful treatment outcomes.

PROGRAM PIRECTOR

NFI NORTH, L^STON, MAINE
APRIL 1992-NOVEMBER1996

Provide oversight forall program operations forDirigo Place, a 7-bed
program for adolescents in need. Duties inchided start up activities
inchidingpolicyvsTding &cilitycoiistruction oversight, and the hiiingand

ohboardingbfstaft Oversiglit ofaliclinicaland educational pro^mming

Build coimminhy partners hips with stallholders and devtlopmeut oflocal
Advisory Board. Work in collaboration with local psychiatric hospital and

-contracted psychiatrist to ensure clinical success. Lead weekly
management, sta£ and community meetings. KfaintainphysicalplaQt
according to MSHAand State Fire NfeishaUregulations.

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN MENTAL HEALTH COUNSEUNG

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE

1991-1995

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATIONS - PSYCHOLOGY

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN MAINE

1980—1985

Resident Assistant in the First CO-ED Dorm on Campus

1981-1984

Trainer in the following topic areas:

❖ Normative Community>^proach

"❖ Safe Alternatives For Everyone
.❖ Supervisory Skilis
*> liaumaliifonuedNfeaningfiil Engagement

*> CouiiseLingSldlls
❖ Group Process

Doctmie'ntatioh Skills-Eva luattoii Writing

R^ent Trainings Attended:
❖ NAFlConference: Presentation Skills, ftibfe: SpeakiDg2023
❖ BostonNationalTLauma Conference 2022

❖ Work Human, Driving Worlqplace Culture by Leveraging Recognilioii
2023
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Awards and Recognition

Best Place to Work in Maine (2018-2023)

<• NFI NORTH Remarkable Role Model 1999

NFI NORTH Yitzhak Bakal Leadership 201 1

❖ NAFI Individual Spirit ofCommunity 1997

Professional Memberships and Assignments

❖ Child and Family ProviderNetworkMember28 years

❖ Secretary, 1 >'ear

❖ Vice President, 3 years

❖ President, 12 years

<* Youth Juvenile Justice TaskForce 2018-2019

*1* Families First Implementation Member 2019-2022
*t* Legislative iMvocacy- ongoing

"Fvlyjob as a leader is not to insist on my own way,
but to get out of other people's way,

Empowering them to do what theyare best at
and aflirmingthem in their growth"

AniySomcrv'illc
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

FINANCIAL EXPERTISE PROFILE

t  Financial Reporting

•  Cash and Credit Management

•  Budget Creation and Analysis

•  Payroll Management

•  Strategic Planning

•  Financial Training and

Management

•  Accounts Payable and

Receivable

•  A dynamic team leader who leverages positive energy, humor and

keen intelligence to inspire, motivate, and guide team members to
optimal success.

•  Respected financial professional, with a proven record of success

driving operations for growth and maximizing cost efficiency.
•  Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic planning for,

and management and analysis of, multi-million dollar budgets.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFI, North, Inc., Contoocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 - PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ^
Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 18
million dollar annual operating budget in our sixteen programs across Maine and New Hampshire and managing a
staff of 5. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial operations including budget creation and
management.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 -FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 13
million dollar annual operating budget serving Hillsborbugh County and managing a staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Provided program analysis to advise on future direction of resources.

•  Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and analysis, policy

interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.

•  Consolidated business team to save approximately 18% of departmental personnel costs.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2009 - MAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 3.5
million dollar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annually. Manage 2 full time seasonal employees and

additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Prepare and manage the annual budget and all financial reports as needed by the CEO, Finance Committee

and Board of Directors.

•  Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable,

policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

Prepare financial statements and reporting for CEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors; including
monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation explanations and analysis.

Critically evaluate new, or renewal contracts and annual corporate insurance policies for appropriateness.

Key contributor of 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial tactics.

Developed and executed a weekly matrix to analyze payroll for 110 seasonal hourly staff to successfully keep
seasonal salaries under budget for the past three years saving $30,000 plus annually.

Introduced seasonal vyeekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated financial information
and collaborate on seasonal budget management. ' '

Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

Manage preparation and fieldwork for annual external audit process.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2004 - 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER

Promoted to leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island offices.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Created and implemented Finance Handbook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

•  Analyzed seasonal payroll and dally rate compensation structure, implemented time clocks to pay

nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.

•  Leadership and day-to-day management of seasonal on island stores (book shop and lobby shop) purchased
all inventory, managed staff and all inventory controls.

•  Compile detailed Information to prepare and submit regulatory filings for town, state, federal.

•  Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

•  Staff liaison to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT

Hired to process Accounts Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

•  Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm.

•  Implemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

•  Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised General Ledger account
structure for efficiency.

•  Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maximize productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by L3 Communications), Auburn, MA,

ACCOUNTANT, 1997 -1999

OFFICE ASSISTANT, 1995 - 1997



Docusign Envelope ID: 5C76C9B3-C83D-49BD-A401-A67B553B306B

COMPUTER SKILLS

Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great
Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbaud Financial Edge, Fund E2 Accounting, Paychex

Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll, Apprentice level in Evolv and LWSI

Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting (now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 - PRESENT;

Treasurer September, 2016- PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast, Admissions Committee;, 2014 - PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast, Program Graduate, 2013

4H, Judge for various competitions, 2013 - 2015

Barrington NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University

Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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4

-JenDlfer L. AJtieri

^Objective

Key Skilli and Strengths
^•Leaderslup — Adept at leadiug/m^agmg woss-fimctional programs..
>System building and implementation
^Capable of leading bi^ peiforming teaii^ under tpii^ deadlines, to meet exj^tations
.'of multiple stakeholders .and other regulatory entities.
v'Strohg communication skills (verbal an'd ™tteu).
^♦Problem soiyer - Creativity and/prethpught m complex project issues;.

{A inotivated.pTofej^ibiial's^^^^ a pdsitiou tliat.cpnUnues'td'ei'i]i^uce~iny skills' an'd
jcl^enge fiulha; growth ^d.^yeIoptmiit uiiile prpvidiag leaderslup to pltm, di^t^d
fcpoidinate prog^i e^amiqn, program oyersiglit-^d system implementatipu.

Education

Masters of Science, Clmical Mental Health Counseling uith an addictions treatnient
Certificate, Plymouth State Univ'ersity, Plymouth N.H. Accredited by the Counsel for

•Accreditatioh of Counseling and Related Educational Programs (CAGREP) Graduation date,-December-l,
of20l5..GPA3.75:

iBncheldf.of Science", Lyiidon State College, 2002

[Professional Expeiie'nce.

'Re^onal Director^ ̂ INqtlh 12^622- Ciarent
■Rcq)onsiblc for o\-crsecmg the admihistrstion of assigned programs. Prondc leader^ip, supervision, guidance, and
.clinical support Responsible for cominuhicatiog idl policies and procedures,-contract negotiations aod.devetc^mentV
s%cal plaimihg and av'aiU^ >

[Care Mana^nient Entity Admlriistfa(of,-iVF/A'dr/////202y-y2/?(?22
jRespbusible[f6r dveiwiiig the adii^stfatioh of all prd^ms.'df the CardManageihent Ehtity'(CME)'that
l^rv'es as a centialized accoimtabijity hiib to cpqr^iate all care foryouth with complex behavioral health
ichallengcs yho are in\'6h'ed in mulHple systenis. The CME Administrator provides leadership, supervision,
jiguidance, and clinical support to programs and staff. Responsible for communicating ^1 policies and
(Procedures, contract negotiations and development, plaraiing and on<aIl availability.

'Prdgram Director', NFINorth FASTFonvard and Tr.-ECC'Slale IFtde 2017-1/2021 0\'ersee program
•Ippwtions for tu'd'separate" «tities.-One providing a Certffied Wrap^ouiid model to children, youth^d
ifen^es ages;5-21. "TTie pth^ entity providing intem^^^ traisition^ senices to Residential and ps>'dtua|hic
Jiq^italized citildreu, youth and families.

[Program Director, NFI f^tlh'FA^Fpniwdand Community Based ^t-i'ices, State Wtde 2017-2020.
iO\'ersec program operations for two separate entities.-Oue.providing a Certified Wraparound mc^el td
icliildren, youth and families'"ages 5.-2l."The other.^lity'proNHdes intensive therapeiitic.sen'ices thfou^
xl^ciaus and case tii^gere thfoii^ t>\'o differeut New Han^hire certified programs sending 0*i21 ye^
[of a^. Individual s^nce.option and Fo'ster care ai-.well as Hoine'.Based Tlierepeutic Sen'ices;
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Program Director, NFI North transitional housing. .Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New Hampshire. And.4rrav
o/Sen'ices, Community Based, and January 2016-2017.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included a staff team oflO
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.

Intern, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actln plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills suppon group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recover)' and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and se.x offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.

Program Director, NFI North Array of Services. Da\'enport School and ISO Sendees 2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for emotionally
disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes
and supervision of staff.

Program Director, NFI. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- 2008-2009
Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
Included a staffof 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sen'ices, Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-
2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.
Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- January 2002-June
2004.

Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for designated shift.

Residential Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- October 2000-
January. 2002.
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting. Includes tasks
such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

■  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an
organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental health needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

■  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in.providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE training is
ideal for schools committed to improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis
management plans and emergency response.
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Prison Rape EUminiition Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North. Responsible for PREA
implementation, policy making and training of staff. Agency trainer utilizing NFI North's
curriculiun 1 co-train staff on professional boiuidaries^ Treatment Literveiitioii, Family systems,
and dociuuentation skills. Also, designed and presented at NFI North's annual conference on
'Girls finding their voice' and 'Marketing your services.'
Illness, Management and Recovery Currently being h^ned and will obtain a 16 hour
certification on this evidence based training.
Supported Employments day certification
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training developed for the
National Center for Trauma Informed Care

CADY (communities for alcohol and drug fî e youth) active panel member for Graftou county's
restorative justice expansion program.2013-curreQt
Gront Awarded tlirpugh the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To Permanency Project.
Focused aroimd Faimily Driven and Youth Guided Treatntent.
Grant writing workshops,'NFI, Nortliem New Hainpsliire Youth Soviccs Md The North
Coimtry consortium.
Suicide PreventioD Conference, YSPA of NH.

Certified in Child and Adolescent Needs Scale (CANS)
Science Implementation
NH Wraparound

Membership/Affiliation
Member of American Counseling Association (ACA) Currently Expired
National Certified Counselor (NCC) NBCC's flagship credential, the National Certified
Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who voluntarily apply and successfully con^lete rigorous
standards. These standards are based on research in the counseling profession. The NCC is the
prerequisite for all NBCC specialty certifications Currently not reinstated
Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the Center of
Credentialing and Education and the National Organization of Huntan Ser\'ices.
Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsllon Pi, which is a cliapter of Chi Sigma Iota
(CSl), which is an international counseling honor society.
Board Panel Member with lOD/NAMI to approve Certifications for all NH Wrap Coordinators.

Awards/Recognltioo
Scholarship Awarded through National Board for Certified Counselors to further my education
at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was $5,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under forty recipients for New Haiiq^shire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Spirit of community award NFI/NAFI (2019)
Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and Afiica (2008.)
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Noel Chipman

license

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker April 2004
-License number 1203

EDUCATION

Masters in Social Work, Simmons Graduate School, Boston MA May 2001
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Hartwick College, Oneonta NY May 1997

PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE

Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH January 1,2012-Present
- Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services
provided by NFl North Transitional Housing Services in Concord, Bradford, Bethlehem, Ashland and Manchester.
- Manager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program and its clinical, case management, supported
employment, educational and direct care staff
- Oversee and provide individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not
guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other criminal
backgrounds
- Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Community
Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities and arrange evaluations when needed
- Oversee, review and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans
- Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staff and agency staff
- Review of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and Joint Commission
standards and provide feedback and training on record keeping
- Provide the schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a Restorative
Partial Hospitalization (RPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges
- Collaborate with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the clinical orientation of
THS .

- Facilitate new consumer interviews, quarterly reviews, client centered conferences, family meetings, discharge
meetings and other various meetings with outside providers
- Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensure ourTHS programs are meeting the needs of our
consumers, other outside agencies and the community at large
- Supervisor for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns
Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH May 2003-January 1,2012
-Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team
• Provides therapeutic clinical services for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness
and/ or substance abuse issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in a rehabilitative partial hospitalization
program

-Provides Individual, family, group and milieu therapy
-Completes comprehensive psychosocial assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy
-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings
-Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare.planning for
difficult to reach clients

-Awareness of legal issues including guardianships, court orders, probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony
-Supervision of treatment team case managers and student interns
-Illness management and recovery train the trainer
Maui Memorial Medical Center, Kahului, HI June 2005'January 2006
-Psychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with severe mental illness and / or substance abuse issues
and forensic patients on a short-term inpatient psychiatric unit
-Comprehensive psychosocial assessments, treatment plans / education plans, substance abuse screening, daily
treatment team meetings and discharge meetings
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-Provide crisis intervention, individual therapy, family therapy and daily life skills groups
-Case Management service / discharge planning
Souza-Baranowski Correctional Center, Shirley MA 2001-2003
-Diagnostic assessment crisis intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeutic and substance abuse
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting
-Comply with and adhere to institutional safety procedures in accordance with UMCHP / DOC established policies
-Case management / discharge planning
•Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings
-Daily triage and segregation rounds
-Leader of a student intern support group
-Supervision of Student Interns

McLean Hospital Belmont, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Case management / clinical work on an adult inpatient psychiatric unit
-Daily patient rounds, psychosocial assessments and 1:1 psychotherapeutic services
-Group therapy Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group
-Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters, community residences, partial hospital / day treatment programs,
family work and completion of treatment plans
Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Assessments, group intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations
-Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and Co-Leader of various program groups

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills
- Certified Signs of Suicide Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer
- ANSA Certification

- Toastmasters International Speechcraft Certificate Program
- NF! Leadership Program: Completed six month program in 2014
- Certified Illness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer
- Certified Supported Employment Practitioner
- Certified DBT Practitioner

- Agency trainer for Family Systems, Group Process and Counseling Skills
- NFl North Conference Presenter 2013 and 2015

- NAFI Spirit of the Community Committee
- Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program In June 2008
- Former NHH Assaulted Staff Action Prograrn responder
- Former NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member

- Former NHH Ethics Committee member

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS

- NFl North Agency Shining Star Award (2015)
- NFl North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013)
- Two-time gold star award winner (2009 and 2011)
- Special recognition award winner (2005)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: NFI North

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Luke Reynard Executive Director $0 $i9i;ooo

Jill Allen Chief Operating Officer $0 $162,000

Kristi Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $0 $139,125

Jennifer Altieri Regional Director tbd $126,000

NoelChipman Clinical Director - NH $17,064 $106,650

TBD Program Director $85,000 $85,000


